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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kolkata Games and Sports Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board'’s report including annexures

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

o Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work ,we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Director either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

F)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31t March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

Reporting on the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act is not applicable in view of the exemption available to the
Company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, read with general circular No.
08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iv.

vi.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023,
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 302009E)

A

£

Arunabha Bhattacharya
Partner
(Membership No. 054110)

Kolkata , 12 May 2023 UDIN : 23054110BGXDXC6745
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, to be reported under
clause 3(i) of the Order.

(b) The Property, Plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c)The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land
and building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. The
company does not have any intangible assets.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under Clause (ii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and
hence reporting under clause (iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security,
and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted
any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities that are covered
under the provisions of section 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) There were no statutory dues referred to in Sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2023.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lenders Hence
reporting under clause ix(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associates or joint
ventures.

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not issued any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause x(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of
section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit Reports issued to the company during the
year and covering the period upto March’23.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company, subsidiary
company, or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 66.18 lakhs during the financial year
covered by our audit and has incurred in the immediately preceding financial year cash
loss amounting to Rs 367.63 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or
more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section
135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 302099-E)

<
<

Arunabha Bhattacharya
Partner
(Membership No. 054110)

Kolkata , 12 May 2023 UDIN : 23054110BGXDXC6745



Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited
Reglstered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN :U74900WB2014PTC201921
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars Note No. MarchA;I:tZOZB MarchA §1a,t 2022
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 4,17 10.15
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 - -
(c) Investment 5 0.80 0.80
(d) Non current tax asset 6 0.41 14.21
(e) Other non current asset 7 1,641.02 1,644.72
Total non-current assets 1,646.40 1,669.88
2 |Current assets
(a) Financlal assets
() Trade recelvables 8 1.48 11.67
() Cash and cash equivalents 9 1.20 46.70
(lli) Other financlal assets 10 - 0.98
(b) Other current assets 11 1.88 2.15
Total current assets 4.56 61.50
Total assets 1,650.96 1,731.38
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity share capltal 12 99.47 99.47
(b) Preference share capltal 13 27,480.00 24,860.00
(c) Share application money pending allotment - 2,590.00
(d) Other equity 14 (26,880.68) (26,809.40)
Total equity 698.79 740.07
Liabilitles
2 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Provislons 15 1.10 3.75
Total non-current liabilities 1.10 3.75
3 |[Current liabilitles
(a) Financial liabillties
(1) Borrowings 17 309.00 309.00
(I} Trade payables 18
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - =
small enterprises
(1) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 142.03 158.82
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(1) Other financlat liabllities 19 499.32 35.75
(b) Provislons 15 0.01 0.03
(c) Other current llabllitles 16 0.71 483.96
Total current llabllitles 951.07 987.56
Total equity and liabilities 1,650.96 1,731.38

See accompanying notes 1 - 38 forming an Integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302009E

Arunabha Bhattacharya
Partner
Kolkata, 12th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

——

Subrata Talukdar

Director

DIN :01794978

Saurm
Director
DIN: 09024501

se
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Debapratim Basak
Manager & CFO




Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited

Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Diamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

€iN :U74900WB2014PTC201921

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Face value Rs 10 each)

Amo
For the year For the year
Partlicul
culars Notes fed jed
(I) Revenue from operations 20 - 20.00
(11) Other Income 21 0.92 8.42
(I1I) Total Income (I + II) 0.92 28.42
(IV) Expenses
(a) Employee beneflts expense 22 18.39 58.74
(b) FInance costs 23 26.26 283.49
(c) Depreclation and amortisation expense 24 5.98 9.63
(d) Other expenses 25 22.95 89.57
Total Expenses 73.58 441.42
(V) Profit/(Loss) before tax (III - IV) (72.66) (413.01)
(VI) Tax expenses 26
(@) Current tax = -
(b) Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses = Z
(VII) Profit/(Loss) after tax (III - IV) (72.66) (413.01)
(VIII) Other comprehensive Income
a) Items that wlll not be reclassifled to galn/loss
(1) Galn/(loss) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans (net) 1.38 4.36
Total other comprehensive income 1.38 4.36
(IX) Total comprehensive Income (VII+VIII) (71.28) (408.65)
(X) Earnings per equity share 27
Baslc and Diluted earnings per share (7.30) (41.52)

See accompanylng notes 1 - 38 forming an Integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Reglstration No. 302009E

Arunabha Bhattacharya
Partner

Kolkata, 12th May 2023

N T ==

Subrata Talukdar

DIN :01794978

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Seerty

Saumyapriya

Director

DIN:
09024501

v

Debapratim Basak
Manager & CFO




Kolkate Games and Sports Private Limited

Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

CIN :U74900WB2014PTC201921

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Parfticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before taxes (72.66) (413.01)
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortisation expense 5.98 9.63
Provislon for doubtful debts - 13.54
Advance/Interest recelvable written off 1.24 -
FInance costs 26.26 283.49
Operating loss before working caplital changes (39.18) (106.35)
Adjustments for Changes In Working Capltal:
- Trade recelvables 10.20 (1.33)
- Other financlal assets 0.98 294.34
- Other assets 2.72 31.40
- Trade payables (16.79) (203.61)
- Provislons (1.30) (2.65)
- Other llabllites (44.92) 23.60
Cash used In operations (88.29) 35.40
Direct taxes refund / (pald) (net) 13.80 135.05
Net cash flows used In operating activities (74.49) 170.45
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flows generated from Investing activitles - =
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share application money recelved for preference shares pending allotment _ 2.590.00
,590.
Proceeds from Issue of Preference Share Capltal from holding company 30.00 135.00
Proceeds from Unsecured Loan from Intermediary holding company - 15.00
Proceeds from Unsecured Loan from other than holding company 40.00
Repayment of Unsecured Loan to Intermedlary holding company - (15.00)
Finance cost paid (1.01) (400.68) |
Net cash flows generated from flnancing actlvities 28.99 2,364,32
Net Changes In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) (45.50) 2,534.77
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 46.70 (2,488.07)
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at the end of the vear(Refer note 9) 1,20 46.70

Note: Flgures In brackets represent outflows.

See accompanying notes 1 - 38 forming an Integral part of the financlal statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloltte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Registration No. 302009E

>

Arunabha Bhattacharya
Partner

Kolkata, 12th May 2023

Subrata Talukdar

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

50-\«:7:\ ;’qﬂ
Saumy;ﬁlv Bose

Director
DIN: 09024501

Debapratim Basak
Manager & CFO



Kolkata Games and Sports Privata Limited
Office

QN :U74800WB2014PTC201921

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2029

Tower, And Ploor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kolkats-700023

Amaunt In fe, lakhs

A Equity Share Capital
{1) As at 81/09/2023
Balance as at April 01,2022 Changes In Equity Share balsnce at the #% In equity shara capital during | Balance as et March 31, 2029
Capital due to prior pariod [baginning of the current  [the current year
errons reparting pariod
2247 047 247
{2) As wt 31/03/2022
Balance s ot Api] 00,2021 Changes In Equity Share  |Restated balarica stthe  [Changes in squity shars cspitsl during |Balance as st March 31, 2022
Capital dus to prior period bagtrming of the currant  [the current yesr
witory reporting perled
9947 = 9947 - 99.47
B.Preference Share Capltsl
(1) As at 91/03/2028
Balance nn st Apill 01,2003 In L d balanes at the | Changes In preference share capital  |Balunce as ot Marcd 51, 2023
Shure Capiial dus to prior (beginning of the currant  |during the current year
pariod armon reporting parfod
24,860.00 24,860.00 2,620.00 LT ABOO0
{2} As ot 91/03/2022
Balance us at April 01,2021 gen in [ d balence st the  |Changes in praference share capltal  |Balance &1 at March 31, 2022
Share Capltal dus to prior |beginning of the current  |during the current year
patiod srron raparting partod
24,725.00 - 24,725.00 135.00 T4, BE0.00
C. Other Equity
{1) As ut 91/09/2023
|l.unm and Surphug
Share applicstion money Othar Itenti of Other Comprehensive
Purtl Totel
Eulam pending allotment Rutalned Eamings Income -Re-measurement galn on
dafined bunufit plen (net of tax)
2,590,00 8,200 488 {4,210.40))
2,590.00 {26,814.28)| 4.88 (24,219.40))
{72.66) 1.38 {71.28)
Shares Issued out of pending for
allotmant pene (2,590.00) (2,590.00)
Diyldends = = = -
share Application money for
preference shares recelved during the - - -
d [26;8a6.94)) 016 15, BA0.GH
{2) As st 31/03/2022
[mesarves and Surples
Perticul Share spplication money Othar ltems of Other Comprehensive
ars Total
pending allotemant Retainad Esmings Incoma -Re-messuremant gain on
efined benefit plan (net of tax)
- (26,401.27}| 052 26,400.75
- (26,401.27)| 0.52 (26,400.75]
(413.01) 4.36 (408.65)
Transfor to retalned sarnings - - -
Shara Application monwy for
prefarance shares recelvad during the 2,590,00 - 2,590,00
r
tslllmn!!m 31, 2022 2,580.00 {26, 830.38)| 488 128, 1190400

Sea accompanying notes 1 - 38 forming an Integral part of
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Notes to financial statement

1. General information

Kolkata Games & Sports Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated in India under the
Companies Act 2013. The Company Is primarily engaged in the business of owning, managing, operating,
administering and dealing in sports teams and of offering services in the field of sports and related activities.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(herelnafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
Instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policles below.

The balance sheet presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as
separate classifications. For this purpose, an asset Is classified as current if:

It Is expected to be realised, or Is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
It Is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting perlod; or

The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

It Is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It Is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in Its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilitles are classified as non-current.

The normal operating cycle of the company varies between businesses. But for these financial statement,
it has been assumed to be of 12 months.

The princlpal accounting policles are set out below.

2.3. Revenue recognition
Revenue from contract with customers for sale of goods and services

Revenue from contract with customers Is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation
by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a
point of time or over a period of time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognised
as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to
be satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtalns controls of the asset.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and goods and service tax. Transaction price is recognised based
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on the price specifled in the contract, net of the estimated sales Incentives/ discounts. Accumulated

experlence is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the expected value
method.

Revenue Is measured at the falr value of the consideration recelved or receivable.

2.3.1. Income from Prize Money

Revenue Is recognised when the franchise has a right to recelve the prize money and no significant
uncertalnty exlsts as to its realisation or collection.

2.3.2. hare of Cen ven

Revenue Is recognised when the franchise has a right to receive the allocation of profit from the Footbal
Sports Development Limited for participating In the League and no significant uncertainty exists as to
its realisation or collection.

2.3.3. Income from Sale of Tickets

Revenue from sale of tickets Is recognised when the tickets have been sold and no significant
uncertainty exists as to its realisation or collection. Revenue includes consideration recelved or
recelvable, but net of discounts and other sales related taxes.

2.3.4. Income from Sponsorship Fees and Advertisement/Brand Promotion/Partnership Fees

Revenue from Sponsorship Fees and Advertisement/Brand Promotion/Partnership Fees Is recognized
as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the sponsors and there exists no uncertainty as
to its realisation or collection.

2.3.5. Income from Player Trading

Revenue Is recognized as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements with the clubs to whom players
have been leased out for a perlod and there exists no doubt as to the collection of such Income.

2.3.6. Revenue from Others

Revenue Is recognised when It is earned and no significant uncertalnty exIsts as to its realisation or
collection.

2.4. Foreign currencies

The functlonal currency of the Company Is Indian rupee.

In preparing the financlal statements, transactlons In currencles other than the entity’s functional currency
(forelgn currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevalling at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevalling at that date. Non-monetary Items carried at fair value that are denominated In foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the falr value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss In the period in which they arise.
2.5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their Intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale,
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Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised In profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.6.

2.6.1.

2.6.2.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to deflned contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entltling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (If applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately In the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
In the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income Is
reflected immaediately In retained earnings and Is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost
Is recognised In profit or loss In the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the perlod to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined
benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

¢ net interest expense or income; and

* remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line
item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service
costs.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated
using a discount rate which Is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by
reference to market ylelds at the end of the reporting period on high quallty corporate bonds when
there Is a deep market for such bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation
Is limited to the present value of any economic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liabllity for a termination benefit Is recognised at the earller of when the entity can no longer

withdraw the offer of the termination beneflt and when the entity recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liabllity Is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave In the period the related service s rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabillties recognlsed in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be pald In exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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2.8.

2.7. Leases

2.7.1. The Company as a lessee:

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and bulldings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identlfled asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances Indlcate that thelr carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely Independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease llabllity is Initlally measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the Interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the Incremental borrowing rates in the country of domiclle of these leases. Lease llablilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment If whether it wlll exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classlfied as flnancing cash flows.

2.7.2. T mpan I r:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor Is classified as a fiInance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is

classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income s recognized on a stralght line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties In the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capltallsed in accordance with the accounting policy. Such properties are classlfied to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for Intended use.
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Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their Intended use.

All property, plant and equipment are valued at cost less depreciatlon and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of an asset Includes the purchase cost of materials, including Import duties and non-refundable taxes,
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.
Interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset until such time that the asset Is ready for its intended use.

Category of assets Useful Life
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Plant and Equipments * 5 Years

* Based on internal assessment; the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which the Company expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less thelr residual values over their useful lives, using the stralght-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equlpment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retlrement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9. Intangible assets

2.9.1. Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
stralght-line basls over thelr estimated useful llves. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carrled at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.9.2. De-recognition of intangible assets

An Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de recognltion of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised In profit or loss when the asset Is derecognised.

2.9.3. Useful lives of intangible assets

The followlng useful lives are used In the calculation of amortisation.

Computer Software 3 years

2.10. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of Iits tangible and
Intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
Impairment loss. If any such indicatlon exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impalrment loss (If any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
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2.11.

to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to indlvidual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there Is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) Is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss Is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) Is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
2,11.1. Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from *profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible In other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

2,11.2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the flnanclal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that It Is probable that
taxable profits will be avallable against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and llabllities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combinatlon) of assets and liabilitles in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidlarles and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company Is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arlsing from deductible temporary differences associated
with such Investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utllise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse In the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wlll be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liabllity is settled or the asset reallsed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax llabllitles and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrylng amount of its assets and liabllities.

2.11.3. Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised In profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

2.12. Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information
Is avallable that is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), In deciding how
to allocate resources and assessing performance.

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment llabilities have been identified to
segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Inter segment
revenue Is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair
value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabllitles which relate to the Company as a whole and are
not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue /
expenses / assets / llabilitles”.

2.13. Accounting of provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
where It Is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where a provision Is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, Its carrylng amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Where the effect Is materlal, the provision Is discounted to net present value using an approprlate current
market-based pre-tax discount rate and the unwinding of the discount is included in finance costs.

Contingent llabllities are recognised only when there is a possible obllgation arising from past events, due
to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the
Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured In terms of future outflow of resources, or
where a reliable estimate of the obiigation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis
and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognised In the financlal statements unless an Inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

2.14. Financial instruments

Financial assets and flnanclal liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabllities are initially measured at
falr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial llabilitles (other than flnancial assets and financlal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.15. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of flnanclal assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basls. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or conventlon in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in thelr entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classlfication of the financlal assets
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2.15.1. (Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
(except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on Initial
recognltion):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive Income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on Initial recognition):

o the asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Changes in the carrylng amount of FVTOCI monetary financlal assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI
financlal assets are recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehenslve income’. When the investment is
disposed of or Is determined to be Impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
this reserve Is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financlal assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.15.2. Amortised cost and Effective interest method

The effective Interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating Interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate Is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective Iinterest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on Initlal recognition.

Income Is recognised on an effective Interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classifled as at FVTPL. Interest income Is recognised In profit or loss and is included In the
“Other Income” line item.

2.15.3. [nvestments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initlal recognition, the Company can make an Irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basls) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments In equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected Investments are Initlally measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes In fair value recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity Instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassifled to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financlal asset Is held for trading if:

« It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

« on Inltlal recognltion, it Is part of a portfollo of identified financial Instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« It Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument or a flnancial
guarantee.
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Changes In the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in forelgn currency rates are recognised In other comprehensive income.

The company has classified all the equity Investments (except for investment in subsidiaries,
assoclates & joint ventures, which are carried at cost) as FVTOCI as the same are not held for
trading.

Dividends on these Investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends Is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
assoclated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the Investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends
recognlised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

2,15.4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equlty instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in falr value In other comprehensive income for
investments [n equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt Instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criterla (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt Instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criterla but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition If such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or llabilitles or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The company has
not deslgnated any debt Instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is Included In the ‘Other income’ line item.

2.15.5. Impairment of financlal assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses If the credit risk on that financial instrument has Increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not Increased significantly
since Initlal recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

In case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured In accordance with the above
requirements Is recognised In other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the profit
or loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet; so
the flnancial asset continues to be presented in the balance sheet at its falr value.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To
make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financiai
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of Initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
avallable without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition. '
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2,15.6. De recognition of financial assets

The company derecognises a flnanclal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset explre, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises Its retained interest In the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantlally all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financlal asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial asset In its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset.

On derecognltion of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part It continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer, The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised In profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

2.16. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.16.1. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments Issued by a company entity are classifled as either financlal liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2.16.2. Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity Instruments issued by a company entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments

Is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No galn or loss is recognised In profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

2.16.3. Flnancial liabilities

All financial llabllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

2.16.3.1. Fi | liablli L

Financlal liabillties are classifled as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it Is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading If:

+ It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
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+ on Initial recognitlon, It is part of a portfollo of Identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o itis a derivative that Is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial llabllity other than a financlal liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon Iinitlal recognition If:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

o the financial liability forms part of a company of flnancial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which Is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company's documented risk management or Investment strategy,
and information about the companying is provided internally on that basis; or

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change In the falr value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that Nabllity is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised In profit or loss. The remalning amount of change In the fair value of liability is always
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognlised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

2.16.3.2. Financial li ties subseguently measured at amortised cos

Financial liabllities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determlned based on the effective Interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised
as part of costs of an asset Is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortlsed cost of a financial
liability and of allocating Interest expense over the relevant perlod. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter perlod, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.16.3.3. Financial guarantee contracts

A flnancial guarantee contract Is a contract that requires the Issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are Initially measured at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impalrment requirements
of Ind AS 109; and

e the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognlised In accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.
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2.16.3.4. Forelgn exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilitles that are measured as at FVTPL, the forelgn exchange component forms
part of the fair value gains or losses and Is recognised in profit or loss.

2.16.3.5. D ognition of fina iabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabllities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have explred. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial llability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial llability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
llability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liabllity derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised In profit or loss.

2.17. Earnings per share (EPS)

Baslc EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Ordinary equlty shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary
shares.

2.18. Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of the financlal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions considered In the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
llabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised
in the periods In which the results are known / materialise.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those Involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized Is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable Income wlll be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utllized. In addition, significant judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economlic limits or uncertalntles In various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
llabillties within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arlsing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected In the assumptions when
they occur.

Impairment of non- financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.
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Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Management'’s estimate of the DBO s based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as attrition
rate, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may
significantly Impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses (as analyzed in Note 31).

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on
the expected utllity of the assets. Uncertainties In these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that
may change the utility of certaln assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

() Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available) and non- financial assets. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptlons on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management
uses the best Information avallable. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved In an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

IT: N-Curm lassificati
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabllities.
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Amount in Rs, lakhs

Note 3 Property, plant & equipment

As at As at
Carrylng amounts of: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Plant and equlpment 0.26 4.41
Furniture 3.42 4.05
Office equipment 0.43 1.42
Computers 0.06 0.27
Total 4.17 10.15
Plant and Total
equipment Furniture Office equipment Computers tangible assets
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at April 01, 2021 39.28 6.26 9.23 9.19 63.96
Additions - - - ~ -
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at March 31,2022 39.28 6.26 9.23 9.19 63.96
Additions - - = =
Disposals - - - - =
Balance as at March 31,2023 39.28 6.26 9.23 9.19 63.96
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2021 27.81 1.59 6.72 8.33 44,46
Depreciation expense for the year 7.05 0.63 1.09 0.59 9.36
Disposals - - - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 34.86 2.22 7.81 8.92 53.82
Depreclatlon expense for the year 4,15 0.63 0.99 0.21 5.98
Disposals - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 39.01 2.85 8.80 9.14 59.80
Carrylng amount
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2021 11.47 4.67 2.51 0.86 19.51
Additlon - - . - -
Disposals - - - - -
Depreclation expense 7.05 0.63 1.09 0.59 9.36
Balance as at March 31, 2022 4.41 4.05 1.42 0.27 10.15
Addition - - - - =
Disposals - - -
Depreclation expense 4.15 0.63 0.99 0.21 5.98
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.26 3.42 0.43 0.06 4.17
Note:

All the above assets are owned by the Company,
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4  Defarrad tax asast (net)

Daferred tax avsaty

Business Losses
Unabsorbed depreciation
Deferred tax assets (net)

Tower, and Floor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

As at
March 31, 2023

Amount In fs, lakhs

As at
March 31, 2022

Nota: The company cannot reliably sscertain the taxabla profits in tha coming yaars and as a mattar of prudence, defarred tax assets have not besn recognised on the Unused Tax Losses & Unabsorbed Dapractation.

3 Non-current Investments

Paca Value As at As at
Fasticulsre par share/ unit March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
QTY. Amount in Rs, Lakhs qQryY. Amount in Rs, Lakhs
in Y lad at cost:
8,000 fully pald Equity shares of Re 10 each of ATK Mohun Bagan Private 10 8,000 0,80 8,000 0.80
Umited
8 Non current tax asset Amount ln Ry, lakhs
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a)TDS Recalvabla 0.41 14,21
Total Non Current Tax asset n41 14,21
7 Other Non currenk sxset
Amount In fs. lakhs
As at As st
() Advance / deposits with governmant authoritiay 1641.02 1, 644,72
Dthar Non current asset 1,643,02 1,044.72 |
B Trada recelvables Amouat In B, lakhe
{Unsacured, consldersd goed) As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Considersd good-Undisputed
Related oartv 1.48 -
e - 1L67
LAl 11.67
Considered doubtful 59.41 59.41
Less: Allowance for credit loss (59.41) (59.41)
1.48 11.67
Total Trade Recalvables LA 11,67

{1 No trade receivable ara dus from directors or other officars of the company elther sevarally or jolntly with any other person. While the trade racelvable dus from firms or private companies respectively In which

any dirsctor ls a partaer, a director or & member s Ra, NIl as at March 31,2023 (as at March 31, 2022 - Rs, NI,

(ih Thare Is only 1 customer which constitutas 100% of total trada recelvable as at March 31,2023.(as at March 31,2022 amounting to Rs. 11.67 Lakhs),

() Trade recelvables are genarally on terms of 30 to 120 days based upon tha credit worthiness of tha customers.

{iv) Trade recelvablen are further anslysed awn
Trada recalvable as at Herch 31,2023

Amount i fLe. lakhe
g for following periods from dus date of paymant
| Particulars
S months -1 year |1-2yean 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
{l}und d Trade good 148 - = 1.48
{11) Undisputed Trade Recelvables — credit Impalred 59.41 59.41
(I} Dlipuied Trade Recelvables-considared good - - -
{{v) Disputed Trade Recsivables — credit Impalred -
Trade recsivable ss at March 31,2022
Amsunl in Re lakha
[ Qutstanding for fullowing periods from tue dats of payment
Particulsrs [
:n"' fhans 6 months -1 yesr [1-2years 2-3yseny More than 3 yesrs Total
i Trade good - - - 11.67 11.67
(I} Undlsputed Trada Recelvables ~ credit Impaired = - - 442 54.99 59.41
() Disputed Trade Recelvables—consldered good - - -
|ivi Disputed Trade Recelvablas — credit Impalred -
(v)  Movamant in the Allowancaes for Doubtful trade crudit loss
Amount
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at baginning of the year
59.41 45.87
in credit loss on trada
Lass: Provision writtan back -
Add: Provision for the current year ; 12 54
59.41 59.41
[ Buitanc ok end of the year

vy Rafar Note 32 for Information about credit risk and market risk of trada recelvables.
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#®  Cash snd cash enulvalents

(8) Cash on hand
(b)  Balances with banka
In Current Accounts

Total Cash nnd Cash Bquiveinnts

10  Other Financlal Assst
{Uneecured, considersd good)

(@) Interast Recelvable
Total Othar Financlal Asset

11 Other Current Asset
(Unsmcured, consitersd goad)

fal Advance to sooliam
Ralated party

Others
Tolal Othar Finencial Azsot

Amount o fa, lakhs

As at As ot
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1.20 46,70
L29 48,70
Amount in 8g, lakhy
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.98
= 098
Amgunt In Re. lakhs
As ot As ot
March 31, 2023 Murch 31, 2022
1.88 215
LR FAT]
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Note - 12 Equity share capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount in Rs. lakhs] No. of shares Amount in Rs. lakhs
Authorised:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 9,94,748 99.47 9,94,748 99.47
Total 9,94,748 99.47 9,94,748 99.47
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.
Particulars Opening Balance Additions Closing Balance
/ (Deletions)
Fully Paid Equity Shares with Voting rights
Year ended March 31, 2023
No. of Shares 9,94,748 - 9,94,748
Amount in Rs. lakhs 99.47 - 99.47
Year ended March 31, 2022
No. of Shares 9,94,748 - 9,94,748
Amount in Rs. lakhs 99.47 - 99.47
No. of Shares 9,94,748 - 9,94,748
Amount in Rs. lakhs 99.47 - 99.47

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of shares | % holding in that class of Number of % holding in that class of
held shares shares held shares
Equity shares with voting rights
Catch 22 Infomatics LLP 49,762 5.00% 49,762 5.00%
APA Services Private Limited 8,85,301 89.00% 8,85,301 89.00%
Nexome Sports LLP 49,762 5.00% 49,762 5.00%

(iii) Details of shareholding by promoters:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during
the year

Promoter name

No. of Shares

%of total shares

APA Services Private Limited

8,85,301 89.00% -

Catch 22 Infomatics LLP 49,762 5.00% -
Nexome Sports LLP 49,762 5.00% -
Choicest Enterprises Limited 9,923 1.00% -
9,94,748 100% -

(iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company the holders of equity shares will be entited to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts.The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Note - 13 Preferanca sharae canlial

Tewer, 2nd Floor, 70 Dilamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No, of shares Amount in Ra. lakhs No. of shares Amount in Re, lakhs
Authorised:
Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 29,90,00,000 29,900.00 29,90,00,000 29,900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald:
Preference shares of Rs, 10 each 27,48,00,000 27,480.00 24,86,00,000 24,860.00
Total 22.45.00.000 22480001 24.86.00.000 24.560,00.]

(1) Raconclliation of the numbar of shares at the

and at the end of the perlod.

[Particulars

Opening Balance

TTswund during the period

Closing Balance

Fully pald Praference Shares

Year ended March 31, 2023

No. of Shares 24,86,00,000 2,62,00,000 27,48,00,000

Amount In Rs, lakhs 24,860 2,620.00 27,480
YYear ended March 31, 2022

No. of Shares 24,72,50,000 13,50,000 24,86,00,000

Amount In Rs. lakhs 24,725 135.00 24,860
(1) Detalle of preference shires hald by each shareholder holding more than 5% sharas:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Class of shares / Name of sharshold Number of shares hald | % holding In that ¢lass of shares | Number of shares held | % holding In that class of shares
APA Services Private Umited 26,53,00,000 96.54% 23,91,00,000 96.18%
{1y Datalls of sharahalding by sromotars:
=
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year ::.cr"'“" during the
Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares
APA Services Private Limited 26,53,00,000 96.54% 0.36%
Merlin Securities Private Umited 95,00,000 3.46% -0.36%
27.46.00.000 100% =

(iv) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The company has only one class of preference shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. It Is a2 0% , pi and p pi shares to be converted

within a period of 10 years from the date of allotment In the ratlo of 1:1.

(v) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has lssued 2,62,00,000 preferenca shares (for cash at par on rights basls).
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14 Other Equity Amount In Rs. lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Retalned earnings (26,880.68) (26,809.40)
Total (26,880.68) (26,809.40)
A. Retalned earnings Amount In Rs. lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening balance (26,809.40) (26,400.75)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (72.66) (413.01)
Other comprehensive Income for the year 1.38 4.36
|Closing Balance (26.880.68) (26.809.40) |
Notes:

(I) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents proflt/(loss) earned by the Company, net of appropriation, If any.
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15 Provisions In Ra. lakhs
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current Currgnt Non-current Current
Provision for amployes bunafits:
(1) Gratulty 0.54 0.00 1.69 0.01
(Il) Compensated absences 0.56 0.01 2.06 0.02
Total Provisions 1.10 0.01 3.75 0,03
16 Other currant llabHities Amount In Rs. lakhs
As at An at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Current
{i) Dues payable to government authorities 0.61 1.57
{I1) Security depasit - 450.00
(M) Others 0.10 32.39
Total 021 AH3.96 |
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Note 17 Borrowings

Unsecured Loans
From Body Corporates

Total

Note :

Amount in Rs, lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

309.00

309.00

309.00

309.00

Unsecured loans have been obtained for perlod a 12 months from the date of recelpt of such loans and carries a fixed Interest rate of 8.50% per annum.

Note 18 Trade Payable

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Related party
Others

Total

1)Trade Payables are further analysed as follows-

Amount In Rs. lakhs

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

142,03

158.82

142.03

158.82

Amount In Rs, lakhs

o ding for following periods from due date of payment As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Less than 1
- a M than 3 years Total
Not Due 1-2 years 2-3 years ore yei
(1) MSME - - - - - -
(l) Others - 7.76 0.35 0.90 133.02 142.03
() Disputed dues - MSME - - - - . -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - = . - - =
Amount [n Rs. lakhs
Outst @ for following perlods from due date of payment As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Not Due 'v'::: than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others - 6.90 18.90 53.28 79.74 158.82
(H1) DIsputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Note : The Company does not have dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
('MSMED Act). The disclosures pursuant to the sald MSMED Act are as follows:
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Principal amount due to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act and
ramalning unpald as at year end

Interest due to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act and remalning
unpald as at year end

Principal amounts pald to suppllers reglstered under tha MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest pald, other than under Sectlon 16 of MSMED Act, to suppllers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appolinted day during the

year

Intarest pald, under Sectlon 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appolnted day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppllers registered under MSMED
Act, for payments already made

Further Interest remalning due and payable for earller years

The above Infarmation regarding Micro and Small enterprises Is on the basls of information avallable with the Company

Note 19 Other financlal llabllities

(a) Interest Accrued on borrowings
(b) Securlty deposit
Total

Amount In Rs, lakhs

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
49.32 35.75
450.00 =
499,332 A5.25 |
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20 Revenue from operations

21

22

23

24

(a) Rendering of Services

Revenue from membership fees
Others

(b) Other operating revenue

Grant recelved for promoting grassroot sports

Total

Other Income

Interest Income
(1) Income tax refund
Total

Employee benefits expense

Salarles and allowances
Contribution to provident and other funds
Total

Finance costs

Interest expense
Banks
Loan from related partles
Loan from other body corporate

Total

Depreclation and amortisation expense

() Depreclation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)

(b) Amortlsation on Intangible assets
Total

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

20.00

20.00
—

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.92 8.42
0;2-% 8.42
Amount in Rs. lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
17.10 55.28
1.29 3.46
18.39 58.74
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 258.68
- 0.11
26.26 24.70
26.26 283.49
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5.98 9.37
= 0.26
5.98 9.63
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25 Other expenses

(a) Travel, boarding and lodging expense
(b) Professlonal and consultancy expenses
(c) Auditor's remuneration [Excluding Goods and Service Tax]
- Statutory audit
- Limited Revlews
(d) Rates and taxes
(e) Insurance
(f) Communication expenses
(g) Bank charges
(h
() Pprovision for doubtful debts
() Miscellaneous expenses
(k) Advance/interest receivable written off
Total

~

Printing and stationary

[

A

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

- 3.32
3.45 4.00
5.50 5.00
1.50 1.50
9.27 59.27
1.71 2.49
0.05 0.06
0.01 0.01

- 0.04

- 13.54
0.22 0.34
1.24 -

22.95 89.57
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26 Tax expenses

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Deferred tax

[ Total

Note: Reconclllation of the accounting profit to the Income tax expense for the year is summarised below:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Income tax expense calculated at 26.00% (for the year ended
March 31, 2022: 26.00%)

Effect of Income not taxable

| Total

(72.66)
(18.89)

18.89

(413.01)
(107.38)

107.38

27 Earnings per share (EPS)

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (Rs. In lakhs)
Welghted average number of basic & dlluted equity shares (Nos)

Nomlinal Value per Equlty Share (Rs.)
Baslic and Dlluted earnings per share (Rs.)

Note:

For the year
ended
March 31, 2023

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

(72.66) (413.01)
9,94,748 9,94,748
10.00 10.00

(7.30) {41.52)

The total outstanding preference shares 27,48,00,000 would potentially dilute baslc earnlngs per share In the future,
but were not Included In the calculation of dlluted earnings per share because they are antldllutlve for the year
ended March 31, 2023 (24,86,00,000 shares for year ended March 31,2022)
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28 Contingent Usbllities
There are no contingent llabliitles as on March 31, 2023 (As at March 31, 2022 : Rs. NI )

28 Commitmaents
amount of

to be executed on capltal sccount and not provided for as at March 31, 2023 : Rs. NIl (As at March 31, 2022
30 Relzied Party Disclosuras

(a) Ralated Parties and their RRelationships

: Rs. Nil)

Sl No. |Nll||| of the Ralated Farty Nama of Relationship

Umited De-facto Control Company

(1) Rat
(z;rimwmm Lmited

Ultimnate Holding Company
(3)|APA Services Private Limited Holding Company
(4)|ATK Mohun Bagan Pvt Ltd Subsidiary
{b) Other Related Partles
13 Koy Managament Personnal{KME)
|SI No. Illlrml of the Farty Name of
{1){Vinay Chopra Manager & CFO Ul 21t March 2022
(2)| Bhanwer Lal Chandak Company Secretiry til Gth October 2021
(3) |Abheek Company Secretary w.e.l. 31st March 2022 till 19th November 2022
(4)|Debap Basak Manager & CFO w.e.f 27th January 2023
li).Ratalle of transactions hatwenan the Company and the relatad oacties and status of outstanding balances
Amount in fts, lnkhs
SI No. |Nnture of Transactlons Parent having control In terms of Ind Entities undar common control Koy Managarial Parsonnal Total
As 110 & Subsidiary
“"zo';;""" 31st March, 2022 | 3ist March, 2023 | 3istMarch, 2022 | 31t March, 2023 | 31stMarch, 2022 | 3istMarch, 2023 | 3ist March, 2022
(1)|Loan taken = 15.00 - - - 15.00
(2)|Loan repald - 15.00 - - - - - 15.00
(3)|Preference share capital allotment 2,620.00 135.00 - - - 2,620.00 135.00
Share application money received for
4] preference shares pending allotment b 2,590.00 - - = 4 2,590.00
(5)|Interest expense - 0.11 - - - - - 0.11
(6)|(Recovery)/ of exp (4.11) 3.00 - (4.11) 3.00
(7) of key F
Short term employee benefits = - - N - 33.65 - 33,65
Post employment benefits 5 * ) 3.47 3.47
Quistanding Balance: -
(1)| Debit 1.48 = = 148 i
(2)|Credit 0.10 0.10 - 0.10 0,10
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31 Employee Benefit Plans

Deflned contributlon plans

The Company particlpates In defined contributlon plan on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised In relation to the scheme represents
the value of contributions payable during the year by them at rates specified by the rules of the plan. The only amounts Included in the balance sheet
are those relating to the prior month's contributions that were not due to be pald until after the end of the reporting period.

Provident Fund

In accordance with Indlan law, ellglble employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a deflned contrlbutlon
plan, In which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary (currently
12% of employees' salary).

Both the employer and employee contribute to this Fund and such contributlons together with Interest accumulated thereon are payable to
employees at the time of their separation from the Company or retirement, whichever Is earlier. The benefit vests immedlately on rendering of
services by the employee. During the year, the company has recognised Rs.1.08 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2022 - Rs. 2.82 lakhs) as

contributlon In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

Deflned benefit plans
|. Gratulty
Other lona term employee benefits

|, Compensated absences

The following table sets out the unfunded status of the deflned benefit plans and other long term benefits and the amount recognlised in the financlal

statements:
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fantculars Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Components of employer expense
Current service cost 0.09 - 0.26 0.15
Past service cost - - - -
Interest Cost on Net DBO 0.12 0.15 0.38 0.37
Actuarlal (gains) / losses from financlal assumptlons 0.01 0.01 (0.13) (0.16)
Actuarlal (gains) / losses from demographlc assumptlions - - - -
Actuarlal (qains) / losses from experlence adiustments {1.39) (1.67) (4.23) (3.64)
Total expense recognised in Total Comprehensive Income (1.17) (1.51) (3.72) (3.28)
Liability recognised In the Balance Sheet
Current llabllity 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.02
Non-current liability 0.54 0.56 1.69 2.06
Total liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.54 0.57 1.71 2.08
A
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
absences absences
Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year
Present value of DBO at beglinning of the year 1.71 2.08 5.43 5.36
Expenses (Income) recoanized In Income statement (1.17) (1.51) (3.72) (3.28)
Past service cost 0.00 0.00 - 0.00
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 0.54 0.57 1.71 2.08
Actuarlal assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% 7.25% 7.30% 7.30%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate Is based on the prevalling market ylelds of Government of Indla securitles as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of

the oblligations.
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31 Employee Benefit Plans

The estimate of future salary increases consldered, takes Into account the inflatlon, senlority, promotion, Increments and other relevant factors.

These plans typlcally expose the Company to actuarial risks are as follows:

Credit risk

If the scheme Is insured and fully funded on projected unit credlt basls there Is a
credlt risk to the extent the insurer(s) Is/ are unable to discharge thelr
obllgations Including fallure to discharge in timely manner.

Pay-as-you-go risk

For unfunded schemes financlal planning could be difflcult as the benefits
payable will directly affect the revenue and this could be widely fluctuating from
year to year. Moreover there may be an opportunity cost of better investment
returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount rate risk

The Company Is exposed to the risk of fall In discount rate. A fall In discount rate
will eventually Increase In the ultimate cost of providing the above beneflt
thereby increasing the value of the llabllity.

Liquidity risk

This risk arises from the short term asset and llabllity cash-flow mismatch
thereby causing the Company belng unable to pay the benefits as they fall due
in the short term. Such a sltuation could be the result of holding large llliquld
assets disregarding the results of cash-flow projections and cash outflow inflow
mismatch. (or It could be due to Insufficlent assets/cash.)

Demographic risk

In the valuation of the liabllity certain demographic (mortallty and attrition
rates) assumptlons are Inherent. The Company Is exposed to this risk to the
extent of actual experlence eventually belng worse compared to that assumed
thereby causing an Increase In the scheme cost.

Regulatory risk

New Act/Regulatlons may come up In future which could increase the liabllity
significantly.

Future salary Increase risk

The scheme cost Is very sensitlve to the assumed future salary escalatlon rates
for all final salary defined benefit schemes. If actual future salary escalations are
higher than that assumed In the valuation actual scheme cost and hence the
value of the liabllity will be higher than that estimated.

Sensitivity analysls
The Increase / (decrease) of the deflned benefit obligation to changes In the welghted princlpal assumptions are:

Gratulty Compensaated Absenses
Sensltivity 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
DBO at 31.3 with discount rate +1% 0.42 1.39 0.57 1.69
Corresponding service cost 0.07 0.21 0.12 0.12
DBO at 31.3 with discount rate -1% 0.69 2.11 0.93 2.57
Corresponding service cost 0.12 0.32 0.20 0.19
DBO at 31.3 with +1% salary escalatlon 0.70 2.12 0.93 2,58
Corresponding service cost 0.12 0.32 0.20 0.19
DBO at 31.3 with -1% salary escalatlon 0.42 1.38 0.56 1.68
Corresponding service cost 0.07 0.21 0.12 0.12
DBO at 31.3 with +50% withdrawal rate 0.55 1.73 0.73 2.10
Corresponding service cost 0.09 0.26 0.16 0.15
DBO at 31.3 with -50% withdrawal rate 0.53 1.69 0.71 2.05
Corresponding service cost 0.09 0.25 0.15 0.15
DBO at 31.3 with +10% mortallty rate 0.54 1.71 0.72 2.08
Corresponding service cost 0.09 0.26 0.16 0.15
DBO at 31.3 with -10% mortallty rate 0.54 1.71 0.72 2.07
Corresponding service cost 0.09 0.26 0.16 0.15
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32 Financlal Instruments

32.1 Capital Management

The company's capital management objective Is to maintain an optimal debt-equity structure so as to reduce the cost of capital, thereby enhancing returns to shareholders. The
Company also has a policy of making judicious use of varlous avallable debt Instruments within Its overall working capltal drawing limit.

32.1.1 Gearing ratio
The gearing ratlo at the end of the reporting perlod was as follows:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Debt (A} 309.00 309.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents (B) 1.20 46.70
Net debt (A-B) 307.80 262.30
Total Equity 698.79 740.07
Net debt to equity ratlo (%) 44.05% 35.44%

32.2 Categorles of financlal Instruments

The following table presents carrylng amount and falr value of each category of financlal assets and liabllitles as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Amortised cost

Total Carrying Value

Total Fair Value

Financial assets

Trade recelvables 1.48 1.48 1.48
Other flnanclal assets - - -
Cash and bank balances 1,20 1.20 1.20
Total financial assets e 2= >.68 -
Financlal llabilities

Sormowings 309.00 309.00 309.00
Trade payables 142,03 142.03 142,03
Other financlal llabllitles 499,12 290,32 499,32
Total financial llahijlities 950.35 950.35 950.35
Total (947.67) (947.67) (947.67)

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2022

Amortised cost

Total Carrying Value

Total Fair Value

Flnanclal assets

Trade recelvables 11.67 11.67 11.67
Other financlal assets 0.98 0.98 0.98
- 46.70 46.70 46.70
Total financial assets 59.35 59.35 59.35
Financial liabilitles
Borrowlings 309.00 309.00 309.00
Trade payables 158.82 158.82 158.82
Other financlal liabilities 35,75 35.75 35.75
Total financlal liahllitles 503.57 503.57 503.57
Tatal (444.21) (444.21) (444.21)
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32 Financlal Instruments

Note :
|. The short-term flnanclal assets and liabilitles are stated at amortized cost which Is approximately equal to thelr fair value.

32.3 Financlal risk management objectives

The Company's principal flnanclal llabilitles comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and other current llablilities. The main purpose of these financlal
llabllities Is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company has loans and recelvables, trade and other recelvables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise
directly from Its operations.

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senlor management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senlor management advises on financlal risks and the approprlate financial risk
governance framework.

32.4 Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the falr values of future cash flows of a financlal Instrument wlll fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market prices comprise three types of
risk: Interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk. Financlal instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits.

32.5 Foreign currency risk management
The company does not undertakes transactions denominated In forelgn currencles; consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations does not arise.

32.5.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysls

The company Is not exposed to forelgn currency risk and hence the sensitivity analysls Is NIL.

32.6 Credit risk management

Credit risk Is the risk that a counterparty falls to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company Is exposed to this risk for varlous financial Instruments, for example
trade receivables, placing deposits, Investment In mutual funds etc.

The Company continuously monltors defaults of customers and other counterparties, Identified elther Indlvidually or by the Company, and incorporates thls Information Into Its
credit risk controls. The Company’s policy Is to transact only with counterparties who are highly creditworthy which are assessed based on internal due diligence parameters.

In respect of trade recelvables, the Company Is not exposed to any significant credlt risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade recelvables consist of a large number of customers In varlous geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates
management conslder the credit quality of trade recelvables that are not past due or Impaired to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash equlvalents, fixed deposlts and mutual funds are consldered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratinas.

Other financlal assets malnly comprise of tender deposlts and security deposits which are given to customers or other governmental agencles In relatlon to contracts executed
and are assessed by the Company for credit risk on a continuous basls.

Cred|t risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on Its contractual oblligations resulting In financlal loss to the company. The Company has adopted a policy of only
deallng with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financlal loss from defaults. The Company's exposure of Its counterpartles are continuously
monltored.

Trade recelvables consist of a large number of customers, spread across dlverse Industries and geographical areas. Ongolng credit evaluation Is performed on the financial
conditlon of accounts recelvable and, where approprlate, credit guarantee Insurance cover Is purchased.

Concentratlon of credit risk to any counterparty did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year.

32.7.1 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements
The Company does not collect any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credlt risks assoclated with Its financial assets

32.8 Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquldity risk by malntaining adequate reserves, banking facllities and reserve borrowing facllitles, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financlat assets and llabllltles.
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32 Flnanclal Instruments

32.8.1 Liquldity risk tables

The following Is an analysls of the Company's contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under financlal liabllitles as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Current

Non-Current

Total

WIithin 12 Months 1-5 Years Later than 5 years
Borrowings 309.00 - - 309.00
Trade and other payables 142.03 - - 142.03
Other financlal liabllities 499.32 = - 499.32
Total 950.35 - B 950.35
Amount in Rs. lakhs
As at March 31, 2022 Current Non-Current Total

Within 12 Months 1-5 Years Later than 5 years
BorrowIngs 309.00 - - 309.00
Trade and other payables 158.82 - - 158.82
Other financlal liabllitles 35.75 = = 35.75
Total 503.57 - " 503.57

32.9 Financing facllities

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Secured bank overdraft / cash credit facllity / bill discounting facillty:

-amount used
-amount unused
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33 Additional Information:

33.1 The Company does not have any Benaml property, where any proceeding has been initlated or pending agalnst
the Company for holding any Benami property.

33.2 The Company does not have any transactions with companles struck off.

33.3 The Company does not has any charges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory perlod

33.4 The Company has not traded or Invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financlal year.

33.5 The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(les), Including
forelgn entitles (Intermediarles) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entitles Identlified In any manner whatsoever by or on
hehalf of the comnanv (Ultimate Beneficlaries) or

b. orovide anv auarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries

33.6 The Company has not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), Including forelgn entitles (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded In writing or otherwlse) that the Company shall:
a. directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficlaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the llke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarles,

33.7 The Company has not any such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been

surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961







Kolkata Games and Sports Private Limited
Registered Office Address:Dhanshree Tower, 2nd Floor, 70 Dlamond Harbour Road, Kolkata-700023
CIN :L'74900WB2014PTC201921

Notes to financial statement

35 The Company has entered Iinto a Jolnt Venture Agreement dated 26th April 2020 with Mahun Bagan Athletic Club and Mohun Bagan Football (Indla) Private Limited wherein
partles have agreed to establish a joint venture company to jolntly conduct business of owning a co-branded professional football team with brand names ATK and Mohun
Bagan, for operating, managing and running football team(s) In various leagues and for advancement, promotion and upliftment of football by establishment of football
academies, advertising the teams, selling merchandise In relation to the team and other related activities. Consequently, all the above mentioned activities were carried out
by “"ATK Mohun Bagan Private Limited” In the current financlal year and the Company has no operations. The management is exploring new business opportunities and does
not intend to liquidate the Company.

Further, the princlpal promoter of the Company (APA Services Private Limited) continues to provide flnancial and governance support to the Company and or Its

subsldlarles. Based on the above, management has concluded that the Company wili continue as a golng concern and will be able to meet all of its obllgations in the normal
course as well as recover the carrylng amount of Its assets as on March 31, 2023.

36 Previous year's flgures have been regrouped/ reclassifled wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classlificatlon/dlIsclosure.

37 Segment Reporting

The Company Is princlpally engaged In a single business segment viz,. football development and other allled services. The financlal performance relating to this single
business segment Is evaluated regularly by the Chlef Operating Decislon Maker (being the Board and Executlve Officers of the Company) and hence It Is the only reportable
segment In accordance with Indlan Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segments.

38 Approval of Flnanclal Statements
The financlal statements were approved for Issue by the Board of Directors on 12th May 2023.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

~ Bt W

Subrata Talukdar Saumyapriya Bose Debapratim Basak
Dlrector Director Manager & CFO

DIN :01794978 DIN: 09024501

Kolkata, 12th May 2023




